Current

# A Constitution of: THE NATIONAL LEAGUE FOR DEMOCRACY

(N L D)





P.O.BOX 352

DAR ES SALAAM

TANZANIA.

# A Constitution of:

# THE NATIONAL LEAGUA FOR DEMOCRACY

(NLD)

P.O. BOX 352,

DAR ES SALAAM,

TANZANIA.

			Page
		Table of Contents	
•	The Preamb	le	3
•	Article I:	Party Aims and Objectives	4
•	Article II:	Organs of the Party	5
•	Article III:	Party Sittings	5
•	Article IV:	Party Membership	9
•	Article V:	Party Leadership	10
9	Article VI:	Cessation of Party Membership	15
•	Article VII:	Dissolution of the Party	16
•	Article VIII:	Miscellanies	17

#### THE PREAMBLE.

- The birth of National League for Democracy as a political party was, mainly, dictated by prime exigency. The noble need to salvage the country's Opposition, from being CCM manufactured and sponsored, crippled, compromised and circumscribed through trickery and machinations by the enemies of true democracy, left the Party founders more than convinced that, the Party's debut on the Tanzania political scene was timely as it was indeed necessary.
- That, for 27 long years, Tanzanians have suffered various and varied forms of abuses and humiliations inherent in a one-party State apparatus, never escaped the minds of the Party architects. And in accepting the challenge to take the 'bull' by its horns to the finish, the Party is, aptly, assured of three things: That this Party has the Agenda of the day, it has the people's mandate to act and the constituency necessary for change.
- 3. The National League for Democracy, seeks to restore self-confidence in the people, lost during the era of colonialism and one-party rule in the country. The Party, intends, equally, to revive individual initiative and enterprise, lost as a result of the execution of the Arusha Declaration. The National League for Democracy will, also, take priority in the recouping of, the heretofore lost Human Rights. In sum total, the Party stands for patriotism, non-racialism and pragmatism.
- 4. The National League for Democracy is, of course, not a branch of any other political party. But this is not to say that, the Party intends to be a loner. Infact, this Party is, and will so remain, a staunch ally of all genuine Opposition parties, seeking our peoples emancipation and development.

# ARTICLE I - AIMS AND OBJECTIVES.

- To restore People's confidence, personality and love for liberty lost during colonialism and as a result of one-party rule; and to ensure that the economic and social plights of the country's underprivileged are address to and redressed;
- To promote mixed Economy mode of economic development and production, in which individual initiative and entrepreneurship shall be encouraged and guaranteed;
- To establish, a professional, non-political, highly-trained, motivated and equipped Army, that would deter a potential and would be aggressor and with capacity, to successfully defend our national territorial integrity against any adventurous enemy;
- 4. To evolve a type of educational system that, would enable all willing parents, to educate their children to the highest level possible. The system would be such that, as a pupil progresses from base to apex education, greater would be the Government's role in meeting the costs of such pupil's education. In this regard, therefore, University and other forms of higher education, shall be fully met by the Government;
- To create employment opportunities to all able-bodied citizens, through job-oriented investments and by deliberately offering priority to industries that are labourintensive;
- To make sure that, Workers are paid and earn fair salaries and wages, through the application of modern Job Evaluation techniques;
- To honour all Human-Rights as are enshrined in the Charter of the United Nations, and its related Instruments; and to defend the Civil Rights of worship, association, expression, assembly and the right of dissent;
- To chart-out and pursue Foreign policy, that would enhance the African unit and the Comity of Nations, whose basis shall be the interests and sovereignty of the people and NOT the whims of Leaders;

- To initiate, through legislation, the rebirth of free Trade Unions in Tanzania, with rights to take industrial actions against unscrupulous employers and with full powers of bargain;
- To engage in the preservation of the environment in Tanzania, particularly against desertification of the land, pollution of the airspace, waters and beaches, so that Tanzania becomes and remains a safe habitat for Humans, Marine species, Vegetation and Fauna;
- 11. To develop deliberate inter-dependency and interaction between the agricultural, industrial and processing sectors of the national economy, with a view to earning foreign exchange through finished goods as a priority, in addition to that accrued through the export of raw materials; and
- 12. To formulate conducive policies, that would encourage the cultural actualistation of Tanzania. As regards sports, to stimulate the rich members of the sporting community, to start professionalism, particularly in the popular game of football, to co-exist alongside our traditional Amateur Clubs.

# ARTICLE II - THE ORGANS OF THE PARTY

(i) There shall be five (5) Organs of the Party, viz: the Unit, Branch, District Headquarters, Regional Headquarters and the National Headquarters.

#### THE UNIT

(ii) The Unit, shall be the lowest, grassroots organ of the Party. Any ten (10) members, at the village level, could come together to form a Party Unit;

#### THE BRANCH

(iii) There shall be a Branch office of the Party. Any 40 Party Units or 400 Party members, could converge into a Branch. A Branch Party office shall, within its geographical proximity, coordinate the Party affairs of the Unit under it.

#### THE DISTRICT OFFICE

(iv) There shall be a Party District office: The Party District office, shall be the Party headquarters in a District.

- (a) The District Party Headquarters shall be responsible for Part affairs in a designated District, and shall be answerable to the Party Regional Party headquarters
- (b) The District Party Headquarters, shall oversee all Party work and affairs of the Branches under its jurisdiction. It may liaise the affairs of the Branches, as and when it is necessary.

#### THE REGIONAL OFFICE.

- (v) There shall be a Party Regional office, in a designated area. The Party Regional office, shall be the Party's Regional Headquarters.
  - (a) The Regional Party Headquarters, shall oversee and coordinate all Party work falling under the ambit of Party Districts under it.
  - (b) The Regional Party Headquarters, shall be responsible for all Party work and affairs under its jurisdiction. It shall conduct Party affairs, answerable to the National Headquarters.

# THE NATIONAL HEAD QUARTERS.

- (vi) There shall be the Party National Headquarters, based in Dar es Salaam. Should need arise, a sub-Headquarters, may be established anywhere in Tanzania.
  - (a) The Party National Headquarters, shall be the seat of supreme organs of the Party, from where all National Party officials shall discharge their duties, and
  - (b) The Party National Headquarters, shall oversee the working of all Regional Party Headquarters, as may be necessary.

#### ARTICLE III - PARTY SITTINGS.

#### 1. THE ANNUAL CONFERENCE

(i) The Party Annual Conference, shall be held once in every five (5) years. The Party Annual Conference, shall be the Party's highest sitting with powers to: -

- (a) Elect all National Party Leaders, other than those whose accession to offices is either by nomination or appointment;
- (b) Ratify, vary, amend and or repeal decisions made and passed by any other sitting of the Party;
- (c) Nominate a candidate for the position of State President; and
- (d) Change the Party constitution as delegates to the conference may think desirable.
- (ii) The Party may, However, convene a special or extraordinary Annual Conference to deliberate on an urgent matter, provided a decision to that effect had been reached by three quarters (3/4) of members of a duly constituted Executive Committee meeting;
- (iii) Delegates to the Party Annual Conference shall be one (1) duly NLD member from each Party Branch. Other delegates shall be not exceeding four (4) from every Party Region, elected from Districts during their respective Annual Conferences;
- (iv) The Party Annual Conference. Will have the power to appoint three Party members as Trustees or fill a vacancy thereof. Notwithstanding and other provision in this constitution, the Trustees shall appoint their own Chairman from amongst themselves.

# 2. THE EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

 There shall be an Executive Committee, which will oversee the day to day running of the Party;

 (ii) The Executive Committee, shall undertake its functions on behalf of the Annual Party Conference, to which it shall, ultimately, report all its deliberations;

(iii) The sittings of the Executive Committee, shall be chaired by the Party Chairman and attended by the Vice Chairman, Secretary – general, the National Treasurer and all the Departmental Directors and Secretaries; and three (3) Delegates from each Regional consisting the Regional Party Chairman and Secretary, and one (1) Delegate (Regional Representative) elected by the Regional Party Conference.

#### 3. THE CENTRAL COMMITTEE.

- (i) There shall be the Party Central Committee, which shall work on behalf of the Party when the Executive Committee is on recess.
- (ii) The Central Committee shall comprise the National Chairman, Vice Chairmen, Party Secretary- General, National Treasurer and any such five (5) members, as shall be elected from among members of the Executive Committee.

#### 4. THE REGIONAL EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

- (i) There shall be the Party Regional Executive Committee, whose functions shall include the overseeing, on behalf of the Executive Committee, all Party affairs in a Region.
- (ii) The Regional Party Executive Committee shall comprise, all District Chairmen and Secretaries and one other Delegate from each Party District, as elected by the respective District Annual Conference.

#### 5. THE DISTRICT EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

- (i) There shall be a District Executive Committee, in every Party District.
- (ii) The Party District Executive Committee, shall comprise all Branch Chairman and Secretaries, and one other Delegate elected to the Committee from each Party Branch.
- (iii) The District Party Executive Committee, shall deliberate on, and oversee all Party work and affairs in a District.

#### 6. THE BRANCH EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

- There shall be a Branch Party Executive Committee, in every Party Branch;
- (ii) The Party Branch Committee, shall oversee and deliberate on all Part work and affairs in the Branch.
- (iii) The Party Branch Executive Committee, shall comprise of two (2) Delegates from ach Party Unit leadership, i. e. the Chairman and Secretary of the Party unit.

#### THE SITTINGS OF PARTY UNIT.

- (i) The Party Unit, being the grassroots Party organ, shall NOT have an Executive Committee. The day to day Party affairs, shall be executed in unison between the Units Chairman, Secretary and Treasurer.
- (ii) The Party Unit, shall hold members meetings, ONCE every two (2) months;
- (iii) The Party Unit, shall hold an Annual General Meeting, once in a year. All NLD members in the Party unit, are entitled to attend such a General meeting.
- (iv) The Party Unit Annual General Meeting, shall be the Unit's supreme Party sitting at the Party Unit level, with powers to review last year's work and lay strategies for the following year.

#### ARTICLE IV - PARTY MEMBERSHIP

- (a) Any sane person, who is a citizen of Tanzania, aged not less than eighteen (18) years, who subscribes to the tenets of the Party, is eligible to membership on application.
  - (b) There shall be two (2) categories of Party memberships, viz "National" and "Associate".

# 2. (a) National Members.

The National membership of the Party, shall be open to all persons qualified for Party membership, in terms of provisions of Article IV(1) (a), and who are citizens of Tanzania.

#### (b) Associate Members.

The Associate membership of the Party, shall be open to all persons qualified for Party membership in terms of provisions of Article IV(1)(a), who are not resident in Tanzania; and Political Parties/Institutions, which subscribe to the goals of the Party and or, which feel politically or otherwise, as having common Agenda or Policies with the Party.

# 3. Party Fees and Subscriptions.

- (a) On being accepted, a National Member shall pay to the Party an Entrance fee of the sum of Tsh. 100/= and a monthly subscription fee of Tsh. 20/=.
- (b) As for Associate members, the Entrance fee for a non-resident member is Tshs. 200/= and for Political Party/Institution members is Tshs. 1,000/= and monthly subscriptions of Tshs. 30/= and 100/= respectively.

# 4. Members' Rights.

- (a) All Party members, shall have equal rights in the running of and participation in the affairs of the Party. But those members, whose membership fall under category IV(2) (b), shall be exempt of the right to vote during Party sittings nor shall they qualify for Party or Government offices.
- (b) Save as provided under Article IV(4) (a) herein, all Party members shall have the right to: -
  - Participate in the affairs and relevant meetings of the Party, including a right to vote;
  - (ii) Elect or to be elected to Party and or Government offices;
  - (iii) Contest, onbehalf of the Party and against Candidates of other Parties, in a civic or General elections as the Party Executive may, competently, decide and

(iv) To hold any office through nomination or appointment, as a competent authority may see desirable and expedient.

# ARTICLE V - PARTY LEADSHIP

So as to carryout Party Aims and Objectives stated in this constitution, and inorder to assume political and state power, the party has created offices and bestowed officials to them who would provide the necessary party leadership.

#### (i) THE CHAIRMAN

There shall be in the Party, the office of the National Chairman, there referred to as the Chairman. The Chairman's offices shall be located at the Party Headquarters. The Chairman shall have the following responsibilities and shall exercise the following functions in the Party: -

- (a) Shall chair and conduct National Party sittings of
  - Party Annual Conference,
  - Executive Committee;
  - Central committee and
  - Any other such national level meetings as the Party may decide to convene;
- (b) Shall be the Party Chief Spokesman;
- (c) Shall wield a "casting vote" in case of votes tally, during Party sittings;
- (d) Shall be Head of the Party, to whom the Vice Chairman and Secretary General, shall be answerable and
- (e) Shall indicate to the Secretary General, as to who shall deputies the functions of the Chairman, during the latter's absence or inability to discharge his/her duties.

# (ii) THE FIRST VICE CHAIRMAN

(a) There shall be the office of the First Vice Chairman, at the Zanzibar offices. The First Vice Chairman, shall be, principally, responsible for Defence and Security. Other party functions of the First Vice Chairman shall be:

- To be one of the Chairman's principal Assistant; on the affairs of Zanzibar;
- (c) To deputies the functions of the Party Chairman if so appointed; and
- (d) To be assign or delegated any such other Functions as the Chairman may think necessary.

# (iii) THE SECOND VICE CHAIRMAN.

- (a) There shall be the office of the Party Second Vice Chairman, at the Party Headquarters. The Second Vice Chairman, shall be principally responsible for Economic Affairs and Planning. Other Party functions of the Second Vice Chairman shall be:-
- (b) To be one of the Chairman's Principal Assistants;
- (c) To deputise the functions of the Party Chairman if so appointed; and
- (d) To be assigned or delegated any such other functions, as the Chairman may think necessary.

# (iv) THE SECRETARY - GENERAL

There shall be the office of the Party Secretary – General, at the Party Headquarters. The Secretary – General, shall have the following responsibilities and shall exercise the following functions in the Party; -

- (a) Shall be Secretary to the following Party national sittings;
  - Party Annual Conference;
  - Executive Committee;
  - Central Committee; and
  - Any such national-level meetings, as the Party may decide to convene;
- (b) Shall be the Party's Chief Executive;
- (c) Shall be the Chairman's principal Advisor; in matters pertaining to the Party management and administration;

- (d) Shall supervise the Party General Secretariat, including the day to day working of all Party Departments, whose Heads shall be answerable to the Secretary – General;
- Shall be responsible for the party internal and external communications, including the summoning of Delegates to Party sittings; and
- (f) Shall be accountable to all matters of Staff welfare, recruitment and discipline.

# (iv) THE NATIONAL TREASURER.

There shall be the office of the National Treasurer, at the Party Headquarters, here referred to as the Treasurer.

The Treasurer shall assume the following Party functions: -

- (a) To collect revenue from Party Members and other sources, onbehalf of the Party.
- (b) To ensure safe custody of the Party finances and assets;
- (c) To write and or to cause the writing of the Party books of accounts, and the preparation of quarterly financial reports, for Executive Committee's scrutiny;
- (d) To arrange the periodic auditing of the Party's books of accounts;
- (e) Shall be the Party's Paymaster General; and
- (f) Shall be Head of the Party Treasury Department. The Party Treasurer shall carryout the functions, answerable to the Party Secretary General.

# (v) THE DIRECTOR, ECONOMIC AFFAIRS AND PLANNING:

There shall be the office of the Director, Economic Affairs and Planning, at the Party Headquarters. The Director: -

(a) Shall be Desk Officer, in the office of the Second Vice Chairman;

- (b) Shall advise the Second Vice Chairman and the Party, on matters pertaining to Economic trends and assist the Party to chart-out, suitable economic policies;
- (c) Shall be the Party's Expert on all aspects of economic planning; and
- (d) Shall be Head of the Special Department of Economic Affairs and Planning.

# (vi) THE DIRECTOR, DEFENCE AND SECURITY.

There shall be the office of the Director, Defence and Security at the Party headquarters. The Director:-

- (a) Shall be Desk Officer, in the office of the First Vice Chairman;
- (b) Shall advise the First Vice Chairman and Party, on matters pertaining to Defence and Security and to assist the Party to chart-out, suitable Defence and Security policies;
- Shall be the Party's Expert in all aspects of Defence and Security; and
- (d) Shall be Head of the Special Department of Defence and Security.

# (vii) THE DEPARTMENTAL SECRETARIES

- (i) There shall be secretaries for each of the following Departments in the Party: -
  - Human and Civil Rights;
  - Foreign Affairs and International Cooperation,
  - Labour policy and Employment;
  - · Women and Children Affairs;
  - Publicity and Public Relations; and
  - Youth, Sports and Cultural Affairs.

# (ii) THE SECRETARY FOR HUMAN AND CIVIL, RIGHTS.

The Secretary for Human and Civil Rights, shall:-

(a) Monitor, both abuses and compliances of Human and Civil Rights – advise the Party for appropriate action.

- (b) Liaise and cooperate with Local and International Agencies interested in Human and Civil Rights;
- (c) Compile periodic reports on Human and Civil Rights, for the scrutiny of the Party Executive Committee;
   and
- (d) Head the Party Department of Human and Civil Rights.

# (iii) THE SECRETARY FOR FOREIGN AFFAIRS AND INTERNATIONAL COOPERATION.

The Secretary for Foreign Affairs and Cooperation, shall:-

- (a) Chart-out Party policies, conducive to the development, enhancement and sustenance of good relations and cooperation, between Tanzania and other African countries and the World as a whole;
- (b) Advise the Party on Foreign Affairs changes in other countries of the world, so as to avoid lagging behind and being disadvantaged by such changes;
- (c) Brief, the Party on various consular measurers, necessary for the promotion of trade, particularly export drive) between Tanzania and other countries; and
- (d) Head the Party Department of Foreign Affairs and International cooperation.

# (iv) THE SECRETARY FOR LABOUR POLICY AND EMPLOYMENT.

The Secretary for Labour policies and Employment shall: -

- (a) Carry-out research studies on matters relevant to Labour policies and Employment, with a view to affording the Party with data on the availability or otherwise of employment and causes thereof, and labour market trends on working conditions and salaries/wages;
- (b) Liaise with Local and International Labour Agencies, e.g. the I.L.O, up-todate in labour matters;

- (c) Collaborate and exchange views with Trade Unions, with a view to knowing better the workers' sentiments, and harmonizing this knowledge with the Party endeavours in that area; and
- (d) Head the Party Department of Labour policies and Employment.

# (v) THE SECRETARY FOR WOMEN AND CHILDREN'S AFFAIRS.

The Secretary for Women, and Children's Affairs shall: -

- (a) Investigate and study matters of Women harassments and Children abuses, and suggest to the Party remedial measurers and actions;
- (b) Undertake studies, in cooperation with the Secretary for Labour policies and Employment, employment biases against women and the employment of juveniles;
- (c) Liaise with Local and International Agencies, engaged in the affairs related to the emancipation of Women; and
- (d) Head the Party Department of Women and Children's Affairs.

# (vi) SECRETARY FOR YOUTH, SPORTS AND CULTURAL AFFAIRS.

The Secretary for Youth, Sports and Cultural Affairs shall: -

- (a) Undertake studies on the potential capabilities of the Tanzanian youth, with a view to optimumly using same in the National development;
- (b) Conduct researchers, leading to the unearthing of Tanzania's hidden cultural heritage. And devising ways of dramatizing the heritages, for the Nation's common goods;
- (c) Undertake studies in sports, that would lead to the development of professionalism in Football and other

popular sports, but at the same time encouraging Amateurism, particularly in the traditional Amateur Sports Clubs; and

(d) Head the Party Department of Youth, Sports and Cultural Affairs.

# ARTICLE VI - CESSATION OF PARTY MEMBERSHIP.

- (i) Any person shall cease to be a member of the Party upon: Termination of membership, voluntary resignation and upon death.
- (ii) The Party may terminate one's membership, upon proof of the member's gross disloyalty to the Party, either by a member not abiding with the Party constitution, ethics or deliberate non-compliance with the Party decisions.
- (iii) However, before a member's association with the Party is finally severed through termination of membership, such a member shall be charged before an appropriate organ of the Party, which shall afford such a member chance to defend himself/herself.
- (iv) One's membership of the Party, can only be terminated upon failure of the member to exonerate himself/herself before an organ of the Party hearing his/her case.
- (v) Upon a member failing to exculpate himself/herself before an appropriate organ of the Party, such Organ of the Party shall refer the member's case and recommendations thereon, to the Party Executive Committee for a decision. However, a member whose case has been referred to the Executive Committee for a decision, may stand suspended from Party membership, pending the disposal of his/her case by the Executive Committee, the only Party Organs with the power to terminate one's Party membership. The power to suspend one from Party membership, lies with the appropriate Party organ hearing a member's case.

- (vi) A members, who so wishes, may resign from the Party, by giving a notice in writing to that effect, to the Party Secretary of a local Party office. Upon receipt of such notice, and after a 30 day grace period during which a member may withdraw the notice has expired, the local Party office, shall deliberate on the matter, and thereupon pass an appropriate decision. A member who withdraws a notice of resignation from the Party within the 30 days, would be presumed still a valid member of the Party.
- (vii) Death of a Party member, shall be taken to mean cessation of Party membership of the dead person. Upon proof of death, the late member's name shall he deleted from the Party members' Register, can not be inherited by any heir of the dead member.
- (viii) Upon cessation of Party membership under the provisions of Articles VI (vi) of this constitution, the former Party member may, on demand, be refunded the unused portion of the former member's monthly subscriptions. However, Party Entrance fee is nt refundable.

# ARTICLE VII - DISSOLUTION OF THE PARTY

- (a) A decision and power to dissolve the Party, lies with the Party Annual Conference.
- (b) The Party Annual Conference, may deliberate on the dissolution of the Party only if, (i) the issue is an Agenda at the particular conference and (ii) there is a 2/3 Executive Members' decision to that effect.
- (c) The Party shall be deemed dissolved, if following the compliance of the provisions of Article VII (D) (i & ii), a duly constituted Party Annual Conference goes to effect the Party dissolution, by a 2/3 secret ballet votes of approval by the Delegates at the Party Annual Conference.
- (d) Upon the dissolution of the Party, the Trustees of the defunct Party shall, according to country's laws, appoint a Liquidator for the purposes of formal

winding-up of the Party, and for the purpose of determining and meeting liabilities and the lawful disposal of the dissolved Party's monies and assets.

# ARTICLE VIII - MISCELLANIES

(i) Quorums at Party Sittings

- (a) Save for Party Annual Conference and the Central Committee meetings, whose quorums shall be not less than 2/3 of the number of those entitled to attend, all other Party meetings shall be valid, upon the attendance of more than 50% of the Delegates entitled to attend at such Party sittings.
- (b) Save for the purposes of Party dissolution, decisions on all other matters by the Party, shall be reached by a simple majority vote.

(ii) Tenure of Office for Party Leaders.

- (a) All Party Leaders from the Party Unit to National Party level shall, on being elected to offices, serve for a period not exceeding five (5) years, then be subject to new elections to seek fresh mandate from Party members. The incumbent Party Officials, shall be free to seek re-elections to their previous Party positions or to new positions, subject to the consent of the competent Organ of the Party.
- (b) However, owing the special exigencies or in the utmost interest of the Party, this term of office for Party Leaders may, by a resolution of the Party Executive Committee, be marginally extended until such an opportune time.
- (c) Upon the Party Executive Committee passing a resolution, to postpone the holding of elections for the Party leaders at the expiry of the fiveyear term, the Party Secretary-General shall communicate such a matter to the Registrar responsible for the registration of political parties, giving the facts of the matter and reasons thereon.

# (iii) Summons to Party Meetings.

- (a) All Party sittings, save in emergencies, shall be convened after an 'adequate notice' to members. In cases of the Party Executive and Central Committees, a one month (1) notice shall be required.
- (b) Party notices summoning members to sittings, shall accompany the Agenda. But in cases of the sittings of the Executive and Central Committees, save when absolutely necessary, the meeting summons shall not included the Agenda.

(iv) Parliamentary Committee.

All members of Parliament elected to the house (a) on the Party ticket shall, obligatorily, belong to the Party parliamentary Committee. Committee Parliamentary shall, appoint the committee's amongst its members, Chairman shall be also the Committee's "Whip" in the House. The Whip shall, from to time to time remind the NLD MPs of the 'Party line' on issues before the House.

(v) Party Meetings and Frequencies of Party Sittings.

- (a) The Party Executive Committee shall meet once in every four calendar months, or conduct four (4) Sittings a year, However, special or emergency meeting of the Committee may be called as need be.
- (b) The Party Central Committee, shall meet once in every two calendar months or conduct six
   (6) sittings a year. However, special or emergency meetings of the Committee may be called as need be.
  - (c) Other meetings of the Party, not specified herein, shall include Members general meetings, to be held at Party Unit and Branch levels, once in every two (2) months.

(vi) Other Party Staff.

(a) The Party Leadership, shall not be limited to elected office bearers. The Party may, thus, engage any such competent staff or personnel, necessary for the smooth running of the Party. Upon the Party making any such appointments, the Appointees shall, exercise valid functions, onbehalf of the Party.

(vii) Other Matters.

- (a) The Party may, in a bid to instill the sense of participatory democracy" within the Party, constitute any such ad-hoc Party committees and appoint to them any such Members. Upon any such appointments, the members so appointed shall be regarded as excersing and carrying-out, valid duties onbehalf of the Party.
- (b) The Party may, for the purpose of guiding its Officials and Party functionaries, "Management of Party finances", "Members Code of conduct" etc. In that regard, the regulations so compiled, shall be read alongside or complementary to the Party constitution.



